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PRESs CONFERENCE OF GOVERNOR RONALD REAGAN
Held January 15, 1974
Revorted by
Beverly D, $oms, CSR
(This rough transcript of the nress conference is furnished
t» the members of the Capitol press corps for their convenience
- only. Because of thé need to get it tn the press as rapidly as
| vossible after the cnnference, no corrections are made and there is
no guaranty of absolute accuracy.)
~==000-~
GOVERNOR REAGAN: Ve have some vigitors this morning.
Mrs. Alma é%%fgiuand -~ vho is the journalism instructor at the
Contra Costa Collece in San Pablo, a clzss of 20 jourmalism class
there. And, incidentally, they have aot to be regular visitors.
Oberad*
Mrs. Gburst brin~s her class here and has for the last several years
at least once ecach year. I have an owening statement.
(Whereunon Governor &eagan read Press Release No. 27.)
0 Governor, what promwied you to wmake tlie statement now?
Was it Lieutenant Governor kLsinecke's comments that were reported
—.  last week about his urging the sunnort --
A No, ﬁo, and let me just say with regard to that, that I've
had two Lieutenant Governors during my term in office, and it
sust seems to be a habit of the nolitical vnrocess that from the
first day in office there seems to be a desire to indicate that the

Licutenant Governor and the Governor are at odds with each other and

spiihcarer, My re=laticonshin with Lieutepant Governor Teinecke

remains unchanged and on the sound and goof cordial basis it always
has been, but you yovrselves have freaguantly asked me in press
confarznees, and this is the first one in considerable time, and
we are gatting closer to that -~ that date, but vou've asked me
whehher I would remgkn ne&iral or whether I wouvld take stands, And
increasingly some of you just in individual centacts have brovght vo,
,,,,, i E s o

- well, am T going to take a stand in this race or the other, but also
it's been coming in from -- from the mecple themselves, these
inguiries. And so this was hased -- this statement is based on
the fact that I have sent a letter to Gordon Luce, the State Republican
Chairman stating this very thing, that I believe the best sarvice

I can be is to continue vhat I've done in every election so far, is
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‘to remain totally n..tral. And I have done tl._c in all nrimaries

since I've been Governor.

Q Governor, does this anply to your staff as well”
A Yes. Yes, it does, Anéd I have asked them to observe that.
0 Has the Lieutenant Governor asked you for support in

the prid%rv?

A No. As a matter cf fact, he is in compdete sympathy with
this and always has been. He's known frrm the first day that he
ever talked &bout running for Governor that I would be -- have t~ be
neutfal in the nri&gry.

0 Then why would he say something like he did, if you were
smart you'd support him?

A Well, there are other news sbories that seem to indicate
a -- different things. Things that -~ that did not put that
emphasis on the one marticular story. S0 -~ you can ask him as
to what his attitude is.

o] Governor -~

& Governor, didn't you sometime earlier sort of leave the

door open for possible wrimary endorsement if youthought it was

needed?
A Yes, I &id. This was one of the reasons I felt a responsi-
bility t~ you to come in here and make this statement. I said at

one time that I was goina to leave -- that vhile I said I felt that
i e : 7
I would be neutral, if vou will recall I said at the samg time I

o

vas aoigé tofieagg the ﬁo;} copen, that iﬁén the interim something
develoned that I thought I could serve the narty better by faking
a stand, I would do sn. And I wanted to leave that option there.
And nothing has happened and I believe that the time has come now
tn clear the air and make it »lain what I'm going to do.

0 Governor, you said the Lieutenant Governor had not asked for .
yoﬁf endnrgement. Have an?jof the nrosnégfive orim5?§ cand;dates
askég you?

. No, no, and others -~ young men in our administration that
have talked about‘runninq for office, have crnme to see me and the
first thing -- and I've encouraged them, I've told them this, that
I think they are the kind of men that should be runnina for public
office, and in each case -- and they will testify I have told them,
they understand, of course, that no matter how highly I regard them

with reagard to their service in the jobs that they have been holding,
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that I am neutfal in the primary.

Q Ha%%ny other candidate, particularly the Controller, asked
you not tn» endorse?

A No, none of them have discussed this, All of them, T
think, have taken it for granted that this is the -- what I would
do.

Q Governor, did members of yéur staff discourage Mr. Kehoe
from his intentien to run for Controller?

A If they did I didn't know anything about it. I doubt it.
o) Governor, what about Lieutenant Reinecke's statement that
you would be -~ that vou'd -- you'd be weakeﬁ?ng your nroggective
bid fofKPresiﬁent in 1976 unless ydﬁyﬁrooﬁgd your sta;é fé;
neutr;iity in the race for Republican nomination for Governor?

A Well, however that was written, or whatever it was was said,
I know the Lieutenant Gnvernor has assured me that he was in a
conversatipn having to’do with ~= thesolidarity of the varty,
narticularly in the vpresent cliimate in '74, and that it did not --
he did not intend that to mesn that I should be in any way inveolved
in the primary or violate n'utrality.

0 ¥ell, Governor, nevertheless, whetther he intended it or not,
it came out that way. Do you feel he was -- it wa%%aken out of
context?

A None of you read the other story. There i3 a UPI story
out that seems gquite contraty to the one you refer to.

&) Have you seen the Lieutenant Governor since those stories

weEe published?

A Yes, just left him a little vhile ago.

0 Have you talked to him about it?

A Yes.

0 Vhat did he say?

A Same thing he's already said, we have no difference of

opinion on this,

0 Did he say he was misguoted or anything that was printed

m*ght have been misleading?

A He said that in the general discussion that this was not the
point that he was intending to make. That the point he was intend-
ing to make was that obviously if -- if I were going to be involved

in a camnaign in 1975, and he dién't know whehher I was or not, that --
that if I was that a good solid Renublican party and a unified narty,
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Republican narty, w 1d be of benefit then. P obhvinusly it

would be.

0 Governor, do vou say you vwould support him?

A - No.

Q Goveénor, now that you raisé%he questinn, will you be in

the contest in 19767

A Sauire, that's too early to say. I'm —--
{Laughter)
A As I have said before, I've got about 11 more months to go

now to -=- to concentrate on what we have to do here, and that's

what I'm going to do.

0 Governor, along thd%ame line, why wasn't the fund raiser
for Assemblyman Jerry Lemis not held in a local hotel last night and
instead at your residence?

A ¥ell, they asked me if thsy could hold it at the residence
and I was very p&aased to cooperztz and tn -- to do that. And I
see nothing wrong with it.

] You see no -~ what is your reaction to the issue that it

may be improner to hold an event like that, inviting lobbyists,

specifically, in a state-supported residence”

A Well, I was not responsible for the 9uest list. I knew that
it was a fund raiser in connection with the party. The man vho was
Governor is automatically the leader of his marty. And I think it
might be interesting for some of you bo check back and find out if
this was a new and unheard of thing. I don*t think it was. I
think you will £find that it's been customary evén when the state had
a state~owned mansion instead of just renting a house for the
Governor to live in, That is my home. I don't think there is

any restriction in the constitution on who I invite or allow into
my home.

Q Do you think it is proper, though? Would you support that
sort of thing at any other state building?

A Well, I think when you get into these stafg offiges and
state buildfigs now -- I don®’t know what the policy might be on
that. I doubt if it would be for ~~ for partisan affairs unless

it was open to both and to all parties to do the same thing, but

I wouldn't see a particular need for that. I doubt if there

would be anything that —- where there would be an appropriate state
building for that. But I think you have to recognize that while
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the state is supposed’to provide housing for the Governor, that is
his home. That is his residence. I don't think the state gays,
"Well, we will provide the home but we will tell you who you can
have in your home."
0 By the way, Governor, what's the status of building a new_
mansion? That's kind of slowed down, hasn't it?
A No, no, it was slowed down, but then when we didn't find any
arrowheads, to speak of, why --

| (Laughter)
A It's back on the -- on schedule alfhough several months
behind schedule, because of that unnecessary delay. But the
architects are -- as a matter of fact, I have a meeting with them
today, with regard to preliminary plans that they want to show.
Q Going back to that party, Governor, did your research
find that actually there were other times ~~ can you be specific

on whether there were other iund raisers?

A I haven't pinned it down to any -=- there's been general
conversation of people who h=ve been arcund longer than I have that --
this was more or less a routine thing and -- in times past. and

that would mean the mansion over there, but I don't know for a fact
that -~ nor have I bothered to find that out. Young lady.

o I heard about a meeting that you had with young people yes-
terday where you told them the@%hould carefully look at the kind

of moralf%y involved with the Watergate scandal and yet a year ago

you told me that everybody had in their campaign staff somebody who
was involved in wiretapping or conspiracy. why have you changed
your mind?

A No, I haven't dhanged my mind any. The young people asked
me the question of what effect I thought this would have and they
specified on a party. And I tried to elaborate on what I thought
the general effect would be and the hope that there might be scme
good out of this. That =-- the Watergate certainly is not the
first of the idea of a laxity with regard to our reaction to campaign
shenanigans in the past, and that maybe this would be a good thing
to finally jolt us into realizing the seriousness of the privilege
of voting and that maybe out of this would come a new attitude on
the part of the people to politics in general, and to not being as
tolerant as people have been. And not just now, but back through
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the past, A citizen:has had a tendency to say,’oh, that 's politics
and dust it of¢f. And, as a matter of fact, I can hark back to

some 1966 campaign speeches when I said then that we should cure
that. That we shouldn't say it is excusable because it is politics.
That we should have even a more stringent requirement for this just
as we do for certain professions. I think we ask more in ethical
conduct of a clergyman or a doctor than we do of some other
occupations,

0 But ore year ago you were dusting it off. Why the change
of mind?

A No, I don't think I was ever dusting it off. No.

Q Also, in Shasta County there is a newly created Superior
Court position. Have you decided who you are going to fill that
with? It is in Shasta County.

A I couldn’t hear the first.

0 There is a newly created Z%ird Superior Court position in

Shasta County. Have you decided who you are going to fill that

with?

A No, we have not made a dedision as yet.

Q Are you thihking about anybody in particular?

A Well, in the Superior Court, no, I'll have to explain

the
the process to you. I tried/first months I was up here to take

the appointment of judges out of the political influence and be

political appointees, and I couldn't get that through the legislature,
but I have been doing it voluntarily, We submit all names that are
proposed for judges to a series of committees, including laymen,

tke 1local bar, the judiciary and the state board of Governors.

And back come these separate committee ratings of these individuals.
And we then get a -- a sheet that gives their ratings across the
board. And we have been appointing those who ar%éhosen at the
highest level by those various ccmmittees. We have indeed taken

it out of the area of politics.

Q Which ones are you recommending? What ones that have
reached the top are you recommending?

A Well, we haven't had the meeting on that vet. I don't

know that all the returns are in, because see, one name will come

in at one time, subsequently another name, and immediately you send
them out to these committees for that screening, and you don't

have the meeting then until you know that all the names that have
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been submitted that you have the ratings back c..,
Q Governor, the technical advisers to Judge Sirica reported

to him this morning that there had bee%%etween 5 and 9 erasures
within that 18 minute section in one of the subpoenaed Watergate
tapes, Doas that in any way make you somewhat suspicious of Rose-
mary --

a I don't understand. I thought that the whole 18 minutes

was simply erased on the taﬁg and replaced by a tone.

Q Apparently the experts, though, looked at it and found that
there were erasures and even they say rerecofgings within the 18
minutes.,

A Well, all I know is that just recently an expert in that
field, the head of an audio-visual company here in California, took
the exact same kind of device =- this was reported in the press -~
took the exact same kind of device and revealed where, how
accidentally, with the foot pedal, you can in twelve seconds erase
18 minutes of tape exactly. I don't know, I'm not an expert.

Q Governor, in the Watergate discussion with the young people
yesterday you said something to the effect that hopefully out of this
people will be more careful in making selégtions of peoﬁié for'ofgice.
Or people they put into government jobs in the future, What did

you mean by that?

A Well, no ==
0 Is that a reflection on anyone who is --
A No, again we have to review the bidding with the original

fﬁ«f;’; mﬁ“{« ey ‘
inflexion. In the entire discussion of this with the young people,

if you will recall, also, I cited and used the Willi Rogers' guote that
the people in government are no better and no worse than the people
who send them there, And I also pointed out that -- that too

often theelectorate turns away and thinks that they are showing

a disapproval of things political by staying away fromthe polls.

And this is not the way to solve the problem. And I used the
example of a school board election recently, not too far away, when
only 5.7 per cent of the voters turned out. Now, I would like to
know how 94.3 per cent of the voters have any right to complain about
that school or the management of this school, what happens in that
school, when they missed their chance to vote in the board -~

school board election, And so I meant that there is no substitute
in our system, I think it is the best system that's ever been devised
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that can withstand the nitpicking and the har#assment and the things
that go wrong better than any system ever devised. But the one
thing that the foundiang father could not provide was a substitute
for the people. It is a government of, by and for the people.

And that "of" is particularly important. It means that the

people cannot leave political decisions to someone else or the
choosdng of candidates. They have got to take the time aﬁd trouble
to be aware of the isses, to understand the issues and then to make
the decision on candidates. And most of what is wrong today, with
our political system, is that these decisions are made by people who
too often go to the polls without a knowledge of what is at issue
and what the candidates stand for. And beyond that those others
who don't go to the polls at all and seem proud of that fact.

0 Governor, back to the Shasta County Judge, has Senator

Marler's name been entered into this process? And if he makes fhe
cut would you appoint him?

ED MEESE: @overnorf we have traditionally not mentioned
any names until they are finugily appointed.
A Never have.
Q Governor, somewhat by the same analogy, on%hat -- on that
guestion, then do you think that it was improper then for the -~ for
the €ontrol of the Presidential elect campaign last year to be in
the hands of a committee under the President rather than within the
party?

A Oh, I don't think there is anything new of that -~ about

that. Every candidate has his%wn campaign organization. Outside the
party organization. You cooperate, you work with them when you can.
I've -—;éoth campaigns I've had my own organizatipn outside of the
party structure. You have to if you are going to be involved in

the primary, you have to have such a structure because in California
at least the state barty structure cannot participate in the sense

of endorsing or participating with regard to candidates ~- individual
candidates. And it would be pretty late to start after the primary.
And turn it all over to them.

0 Governor, how could Watergate have been prevented by a

more alert electorate?

A Well, I suppose if you are going to get down to try and take
a specific of that kind, I'll have to sit down and write a ;¥ -«
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- script for that. “ﬁ was talking about an att*"ude--s lax attitude
that has persisted long before Watergate, that goes back through
Bobby Baker and Billy Sol Estes and the Tammany Hall in New York,
and Hage Machine in New Jersey, and Daley, and before that the
Kelly-Nash Machine in Chicago, and I think that all of those things
took place because of the willingness of people to go their way and
let George do it.

Q Was that true of voters in''72, five months after the

Watergate break-in was revealed, still voting for the President?

Do you think that's an example of the same thing?

A Well, I 8on't know. I have often said I'm not going to go
back on a statement that I madégefore, that I can't recall a Presi-
dential election in many years}in which the philosophies, the issues
were as clearly defined as they were in this one. You had two
opposing camps as to issues, and I thought the peopf; didn't really
make so much of a decision or chcice of a man as they did they

p . " » ) ,
voted against the almost revoluticn and reconcept of our American

systém that was presented by the McGovern campaign.

o

Q Governor, do you think Watergate was néwworée théﬁ aﬂ§ of
those other casegﬁth?t yoéﬁentioned in terms of poligical

corruptfgh and scandal? “

A I'm not going to get into that game.

Q But you keep equating ~= every time you are asked about
Watergate you say this has been going on all along, as if this is
really nothing different. And that doemn't make it right.;?:And

I'm not going to get into an answer to ywur question because I think .
that it is just as dishonest to steal a dime as it is a dollar.

o Governor, ¢hat is your reaction to Secretary of State

Brown's suggestion that the state take back its tideland oil lands

and go into the ©il business?

A Well, I liked him better when he was picking up arrowheads.
(Laughter)
A I think it shows a great ignorance of our system. I think

it is a very naive thing for him to propose, and I don't think that
the state should be getting into competition with the private sector
in any field, and is this to suggest that if there is trouble in

the automobile industry thatkthe state ought to jump in and start
manufacturing automobiles? First of all, when I say igna ance of
our system, I don't think that what he's proposing could be done

under California law and constitution.
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0 Governor, in your State of the State address you suggested

that the Becretary of State's office be made a non-partisan office.

Does that have anything to do with the fact that Mr. Brown is the only
Democrat who holds the constitutional office?

A No, it has to do with the fact that he himself has brought
this out in the last several months. He brought it out; he's

milked it. And that is théﬁdea of the new laws, the new regulations
with regard to campaign reporting, campaign practices and so forth
that the Secretary of State's office is in charge of, the supervising
of -~ of those campaign practices. Now, with that emphasis on that
office, to supervise elections, partisan elections between a major

and whatever the third and fourth parties there are, it would seem

to me that the character of the office has changed and in order to

do that and avoid any possibility of conflict of interest or of bias
and partisanship in supervising those compaign tactics, it should be
a non-partisan office,yggget&e man could stand above the gray and judge
each party equally. Now, as you know, we have had criticisms
recently and particularly wi%h regard to Proposition 1, and some other
campaign things, that there has not been an even-handed administering
of the =~ of the laws from that office.

Q Why did you also suggest that other offic%als with not
partisan duties, such as you say the Attoﬁ;ey Geééral, alsgwbe nég-
partiséﬁyoffige? '

A No, I did't suggest that because the same thing doesn't
prevail. They are not involved in partisan activities, supervising
elections, supervising campaign contributions and the reporting of
campaign contributions and such. The Attorrey General, for example,
is traditionally the Governor's lawyer. And the other constitutional
affices having to do with the Treasury and the Controller's office,
they don't have anything to do with the elections, so there wasn't

any reason to make those -= if you went that route, then you might

as well say the Governor should be non~partisan, too, and then you

end the two party system,

Q You -=- in Proposition 1 you said your budget is following

the guidelines of that. But in Proposition 1 you suggested

a permanght reduétion in @ndome tax. This isn't in your budget.

Are you going to propose it or what?

A No, it was voted down by the people. Right now, very frankly,
the reason we haven't proposed that in legislation is because since
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that time the energl‘érisis -~ NOowW th%ﬁoney is ;here, the surplus
is there that would have been used in that tax cut, but I -- I am
willing to wait now to make sure that we don't run into an emergency.

Q But the energy crisis was brought up when Proposition 1 was

in there and some people, including Alan Post, said it wouldn't
worﬁfbecaﬁée of the coming eneréy cridis. Does that mean Prop. 1
wouldn't have worked?

A Yes, Prop. 1 would have worked, and our present budget
indicates it. And our money is there and everything would have
taken place exactly as it has taken place if Prop. 1 passed. But,
first of all, I don't believe with the majority we haee in the
legislature there is any chance in getting the -~ that tax cut.
That was one of the reasons the leadership was opposed to it. But
the -~ the money is hhere. It could have provided for that tax
cut.

o Governor, Senator Bidé&e wlans to figﬁ% your appoint --

appointments to the State Air Reswurces Board, the four new appoint-

ments you made last month, on the grounds that they possibly aren't
gualified under law and that he says they were appointed merely

to obtain a particular decision on the '66-70 car license ~~

Could you comment on why you made that much of a change and -~

A Yes, I look forward to talking to Senator Biddle about that.

I can understand his concern. He repreeserts a district that has

a very great problem. Geographically, that area over there gets

all the air pollution from Orange and Los Angeles Counties and piles
up against the mountains and they live in it until the wind comes

along and blows it away. So K know the concern and I think we all
share that concern. But the board situation is ~- has not been fairly
portrayed. First of all, I was faced with three resignations, and

some of those resigning, Dr. Haagen-Smit, for a long time had intended
to retire. He'd stayed on longer than he intended to and some of those
retiring suggested that they felt this was a time now for a reo;ganiza—
tio% of the board. A fourth member's term had come up, had expired.
The individual was -~ no one was fired. This person's term had
expired and long before the whole matter of the energy crisis had come
this individual had been warned or advised -- I shouldn't put it

as a warning =- advised that very possibly might not be reappointed

and this is true of many other boards. If you notice that we -- we

do make changes in personnel. So we went forward with this. I
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have never spoken to éhe board@ with =~ to any o. ;hese members
individually with regard to what their course of action might be.

I think there was -=- there's been question for a long time and

we have had numerous meetings about the smog control devices, their
effectiveness, whetter we were moving too fast or not. We finally
went ahead with them and they still will go forward. They will apply
and be applied to cars when they change ownerships. Anyone tréging
in aﬁxold’cﬁk, from '66 to '70 period, before it can be resold it

must have one of these devices put on it. The only thing that we
held up on because of the émergy crisis was the plan to go forward
making every one -- while they presently own the car, install one and
that has only been a delay. This was done by the board on its own.
But there was no tie-in of any kind, I was faced with making three
appointments, whebher I wanted to or not, by three resignations and
the resignations were, as I say, for various per sonal reasons. None
of them involved wérh any poliicy dispute.

Q On that fourth one, are you aware that the members of the Air

Resources Board do not serve term appointments, they serve the

pleasure of the Governor and can be removed at any time? So her
appointment did not run out.

ED MEESE: All of the appointments were vacated at this
point as far as the reorganizatioh and then each cne was reviewed,
It is not a term appointment, but it was -- all positions were vacated,
6] Then why specifically did you replace Mrs. Mead, the one who
did not hand in%er resignation?
A For the reason that I told you, we were going ahead with three
new members, we felt that it was time -~ just as some of them in
going out had recommended to us, a total reorganization of the board,

so we did.

0] Are you ==
A And we have done this before with other boards.
Q When you were asked about the board several months ago you

were asked at a press conference what you thought about their record.
You thought they had done a prettxé?;ood job.

A I do, I think that we have been th ;ost foftunate state

in the union to have Dr. Haagah—Smit as the Chairman of that board,
and it wasn't through my choice or desire that Dr. Haagen-Smit decided
he'd come to the end of the line.

0 Governor, in light of what some of thg%il companies are

saying as far as reserves on hand, fuel reserves on hand, are you
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having any second douots that the energy crisks .s as serious as
v

- < « N
they say it is?

A No. No, I haven't, As you know, last May wé@eld a state-
wide seminar here with the best input that we could inf;he round-
tabling of this. More than a yegi aéi we had a seﬁ?nar and a
report to us by the best experts in the field at the National
Governor's Conference. We have had such a -~ demonstration here
and by some of the same people before our own cabinet. And it's
been known for a number of years that two things were happening.
One was a vast increase in consumption. But the other was a
decline. Now, just in the years that we have been here we have
vastly increased in California the need to import energy and fuel into
California. And there has been a decrease in our own production.
And these two things coming together were giving us the picture of
an increasing problem. Now, whzt really happened to that, maybe it
was in a way a favor to us, becav:ze yod%ouldn’t get much public
attention as long as you could still gd in and get your tank filled
with gas, it didn't do too much good to say to people each year we
are getting more in trouble and up here, two or three years from now,
we are going to be in fteal trouble. The real trouble came earlier
than that, simply because the Arabs cut off the oil supply and that
precipitated the emergency gquicker. In just a few years, if
the Arabs -- let me put it this way, if we don't find some of the
Same answers we are talking about now, even if the Arabs start
shipping the oil tomorrow, we still are facing an energy crisis that
by == within the next ten years is going to find us in a situation
like England is, right today. So the energy crisis is for real.
Q Governor, back to your Proposition 1, and the budget. You
say that the money is there for the tax cut that Proposition 1 would
have called for, With a seven and a half per cent income tax
reduction you have got something like $105 million surplus, not
counting federal revenue sharing money -~ you say that would -~
and that -~=- and Alan Post says that doemn't count for any increase
in welfare costs because of the energy crlsls, you are saying that
that would have covered that 1ncome tax‘cut that the Proposition 1
would have called for?

VERNE ORR: @ Governor, the combination of $105 million in the
free surplus, and $167 willion, is 272, and the income tax rebate
of seven and a half per cent the first year would have been in the



neighborhood of $155 million.

&

o] But wé?an't spegﬁ the revehue sharing money without special
allocation, We can't use it for general.

VERNE ORR: You can wf%h specf;1 alloégtion b;pthe legiEla-
turé: use it for almost anything you want,
A It is simply up to the legislature to appropriate it.
Q Governor, in your Shate of the State message you recommended

some constitutional changes which would require that the legislature

provide revenue sources for programs it advocates, expenditures, But

yet in the same State of the State message you made a number of
recommendations for programs which would cost a great deal of money,
like expandipg the Oroville Dam an%gther dams, new geothermal research,
solar energy research, some changeé in the Department of Education
without suggesting how those could be financed. Well, now, aren't

you at odds with yourself there?

A No, everything that was suggested there is within the budget.
And is presently being financed. I intend to pursue and to follow

-

up-~ I can find that no one has giveﬁ% logical answer or any

answer at all as to why the thiings Ivsuggested with regard to taxing
znd spending should not be impiemented. No one can suggest any
reason why a legislator should be able to pass a ppending measure

without indicating how the measure was going to be financed. And

I think for legislators to go on proposing hundreds of millions of dollars

billions of dollars in spending with no responsibility whatsoever
for suggesting a method of paying for them is just -~ is just

a ridiculous kind of government. It's what's led tothe present cost
and size of government. Now, what we have proposed is two things.
We have proposed a constitutional amendment and I still think it

is a good one, the Governor has to submit a balanced budget to the
legislature or submit a budget and a revenue measure with it that
would make it balanced, The legislature, on the other hand, turns
around and sends back down t&}he Governor, not just this Governor,
but any Governor, and has in the past, sends down a budget with
hundreds of millions of dollars of added spending that puts the
budget out of balance and provides no tax revenue, and if anything,
you almost suspect that they wait for the Governor then to pick up
the responsibility of saying, well, all right, I'll sign that and
now I'll have to ask you&or a tax increase. I think they ought to
do the same thing the Gévernor does. The other thing is a way to

approach this, and to have some control and in the battle over



i~

Proposition 1 the 1egislature repeatedly -- or those legislators
who were opposed to it, repeatedly said this was a problem
they cai1ld solve, that they cculd handle this. Now, I'm saying
that a legislator with a spenaing me;sure should either indicate
where the money is coming from, in other words, that i& is going
to supplant something else in the present budget, or suggest a
revenﬁé meas&re to pay for it, and if anyone can show me why that
g8n't eommon sense, I'd like to know.
Q Can I have my questinn back? I didn't mean to ask you
about that. I asked you about -~ and my question was, why didn't you
do that in the State of the State message? I don't see any
geothetmal research money in the budget.
a Oh, yes. The state and the Water Resources Board in connec-
tion with their own state college and universities is engaged in
research, but the most of the reszarch is going forward as it properly
should by the privately owned uti.ities in our state, #that are going
forward with this. The Water Resources Board is right now
engaged in a study of how much more capacity we might be able to get
in hydroelectric. I'm sure it isn’t going to be much because we
have pretty much exhausted that field.

SQUIRE : Thank you, Governor,

GOVERNOR REAGAN: But those things are going forward.

SQUIRE s Thank you, Governor.

o s e O O o oot o
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GOVERNOR REAGAN 3 I have an opening statement, but before
that, we have in the back of the room once again some visitors,

a journalism class from the University of California, Berkeley,
under instructor Richard Reinhardt, Glad to have you here.

{(Whereupon Governor Reagan read press release No, 60.)

GOVERNOR REAGAN : Bill, I' m going to ask you if you'll
step up here so they see you and meet you as the new head of this
5rive,‘and you ladies and gentlemen have any questions on this
particular subject, Bill and I will be very happy to answer these.
T'11 leave it to him.

< MR, LANE: Well, thank you very much; Governor, it is a
great pleasure for me to serve as chairman and as we are referring
to it, the new Proposition ljiwhich we feel that this is an
excellent boﬁ% to take to the people. The $90 million that the
Governor referred to goes back intd local government which not only
meets the needs of the elderly add the invalid and young people, but
certainly is very timely with the energy crisis and so for that
and many other reasons, I feel this is an excellent act and I'm
~ary proud to be a part of the organization, and I want to thank
#ie Governor persocnally for his very strong suppcut, Thank you,

Q Are you able to tell us how much of this =- how much land
in Lake Tahoe would be purchased? |

GOVERNOR REAGAN:  You'd better get back in front of
that mike.

MR, LANE: It varies somewhat., Bill Mott and the
wonderful people in the’State Park organization have made recommenda-
tions, and this is part of the ten million dollars I think you'are
referring to, and there are three pieces of property and it depends
in part upon how much those pieces of land are going to cost.
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Bill, do you have a specific answer to that, in terms of numbers
of acres, if, éay, all three were able to be purchased?

BILL MOTT: No. Not the total acreage,

BILL LANE: It will vary scmewhat. There are three spe-

Cana »4) - ‘

cific,sites, however. I have personally inspected them, onf at
Nortgiake Tahoe, one around Cascade Lake, just south of the Emerald
Bay, and another one that is -- in the southern end of the plateau
area, down by the South Lake Tahoe airport. There are three
excellent sites, but the exact determination still has to be made.
Q Mr, Lane, are you concerned the voters might confuse this
with the old Prop. 1? '

MR, LANE: Yes, I am. I happen to be one who supported
Proposition 1, dr the old Proposition.1, I am going to do every-
thing I can and so is our ¢ommittee, to make sure that that
confusion is minimizeé, and I certainly look forward to the sppport
that T hope we would have from you ladies and gentlemen of
the press, to be sure that there is not a confusion onAthat matter,
But I anticipate that there may be some.

0] Where will you opérate your headguarters out of?

MR, LANE: We will be headquartered, I suppose, in one
sense where my office is, which is Sunset Magazine. But we will
have a northern and southern Cal ifo rnia headguarters for this, and
hopefiilly a San Diego and petaps one other,

Q Where is the 8unset ~- where are you?

MR. LANE: Menlo Park., Yes, sir,

GOVERNOR RFAGAN: Bill, thahks very muchz-

MR. LANE: Thank you wvery much,

GOVERNOR REAGAN : -- for doing it, I'11 make one suggest-
ion now. Not the new propositionil, that might sound like it is a
new version of the old one, the different Proposition 1.

MR, LANE: Thank you very much, Governor.

{(The following answers were given bykGovernor Reagan
unless differentiated.) |
Q Governor. several members of, as ieﬁs called, your kitchen
cebinet, Mr, Tuttle, Mr. Firestone, Mr. Smith, Mr. Packard, have
endorsed the candidacy of Mr. Flournoy for Governor. What does that
say to you about the dandidacy of Ed Reinecke?

A Well, first of all, let me make something piain. I have



never used the term -kitchen cabinet', That's one that has been
coined. I don't recognize that thee is such a kitcﬁgn cabf;et.

We have got a pretty fine cabinet here, A few of the names that
you have mentioned there are men who were personal friends of mine
for a long time, and yes, they were political supporters, also. But
I've nddiced in the stories of those men that have already taken a
position and women, in regard to the candidates for Governor, that
there are among them many who didn't support me in my first time out,
So I don't think that there is any block of so-called Reagan
supporters that go any direction. I think this is in keeping with
what I announced a few weeks ago, that I was going to persoggllyr
remgin neutral,kask all of the staff and the administration here

to remain neutral in the campaign, and I urged everyone then to go
out and choose their candidates and jist remember that éfter the
primary to unite behind one. And I -~ I find nothing surprising

in this. I think there is going to be -~‘apparent1y now has

come down to a primary between Controller Hugh Flournoy and the
Lieutenant Governor, Ed Reinecke. They both are good friends.

They are both Bood Republicans, and I think that they will ~- they
will have a fine and open primary, a2nd the people will make their
choice.

Q Governor, my question was, thaﬁ these men are -- I think
they have earned the reputation as being astute political activists,
Now, when they go over to Mr. Flournoy, who hasn't always in the
past shared their philosophical perspective, my question is, what
does that say to you about the candidacy of Ed Reinecke who phike~
sophically, it would seem, would be more comﬁatible to these men
than Mr, Flournoy?

A Well, I don't feel that I have any answer for that, ghan

to maintain my position that I am going to be absolugély neugial.
There is no way to answer about a comparison between primary candidates
without having it being able to be interpreted one way « the other.
So I just don't feel I can answer your guestion. I think that
Republicans, various shadings, are making decisions. I imagine
there are going to be some that, as they have in the past, are going
to remain neutral until after the primary. I think some of these
are men who might very easily have been the suppofters of é%%
Younger, the Attorney General, if he had gone for Governor. They
will supportbhim now for Attorney General, but they have now made

another choice. And I'm not going to read any signifiamance into



itat-akd,

) Governor, do you have any decision made on the basis of what
Republican is best -~ best capable of winning in November?

A Well, you are going to havé to ask each individual what

his measons were. And I'm not going to =~ to speak for them,

I'm sure that many people take into account the chances they

feel that a candidate has. But this would be true then of those who
are supporting the Lieutenant Governor.

Q Governor, is there an understanding that Hugh Flournoy will .r
support you for the preéidency if, in the event that you do run for

the presidency?

o

/
A T have had no conversation with HuﬁﬁrFlournoy at all. And

the only conversation I've had with any of these men is when Holmes
Tuttle, a long-~time personal friend, called me late in the afternoon
to tell me that he made made a decisic%%o go that way. And I told
him that'’s your ~- "That's your decision and your choice,"
Q What afternoon?
o] Governor, almost evex?one else salid Ed Reinecke's candidacy
is in serious trohble. Do you disagree with that?
A : I'm not going to make any commeht at all because I think
even comments of that kind, one wgy or the other, can be cons trued
as having some meaning with regard to my feelings.
Q Well, Governor, why would Mr. Tuttle calg§ou then and
tell you what he did?
A Beaause he's been a very -~ we have known each other for
thirty vears, been long-time friends. And I -~ Holmes is aware
that his name has been associted with mine in efforts -- in the
support of Proposition 1. He supported me in everything I did,
and he just felt that he wanted me to know that --~ the course he was
tgoing to follow,
Q Do you think he may have called you because it would have been
expected that he would have supported Lieutenggt Goverﬁgr ReinéZke
because he was a supporter of you?
A I didn't ask him anything of the kind. I made my statement
to you publicly and to all of them, sent copies of my letter to
Gordon Luce, to all the pokential candidates in all the races of what
I was going to do about staying neutral, and I've had no conversation,
Q Governor, when did Holmes Tuttle call you? What day?
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A You know, I can't remember.

ED MEESE: I believe it was Tuesday afternoon, Governor.
A Was it Tuesday afternoon? I can't remember the day.
All day yesterday I thought yesterday was Tuesday and then I
remembered I wasn't here Monday.
Q Governor, what about the trend of some df these people
supporting Floufgby and Senator\Ha;;er as sort of a moderate
congervative ticket? Does that appex significant to you?
A No, because I have a hunch you'll find a number of those
names that I've read them in the -~ in the press stories already,
I think you'll find a number of those names that won't. This -~ so
I don't think that there is any =- you know, agreement that -~
Q Well, would you séy if you see any trend developing at

this point overwhelmingly in favor of one candidate, or do you think

it is pretty wide open at this point?

A Ag far as I'm concerned, it is wide open.
& s
Q Governor, do you think a Republican will win the governor-

ship next year?

A I certainly think they should, and I'm most hopeful, I think
they will, I just would ~- I would hate to believe that the things
that have been accomplished so far might be reversed,

o> When Holmes Tutitle called you, did he discuss with you

at all the possibility of your running for President and what

his endorsement of Flournoy might mean at that contest?

No, |

How, to-the best of your memory did he approach it?

Just told me. |

Did he —

> 0 » 0O >

He told me he had finally come to a decision, this is what
he wa%&oing to do, and told me that he was also going to meet with

Ed because they are good friends and tell him of his decision, and

that was it.

0 Governor, are you running for President?

What?
Are you running for President?

No, I'm running for my life right now.

LO I & I

Governor, is it true you are going to be spending about a

week very month on cam ~~ on making speeches out of state from now
-5 v




on, the rést of Ehis year?

A ﬁoi it's turned out that for three moﬁfhé héré ~- each month
I héa a trip that took me out of state, And this means that I

will do what I've done for seven yearé; Oon fhe way to and from

I will then pick up some of the invitations and let me explain what
I mean by the invitations. And I think this iiﬁrue of a great

many of us in the party, this happens to us. I get invitations

f rom governors or party leaders in other states, will I do a fund
raiser, Sometimes it is a specific invitation, they say, "We are
having a fund raiser on "x" date. Will you come to that fund
raiser?" Many times I can't accept. Sométimes they say , "If you
ever are in the area, will you let ué know in sufficient time that

we could arrange a fund raiser. Would you be willing to do one?"

Now, this is what happened on the last trip. I had two engagements
in Washington, almost a week apart. And it was a case of sitting
around waiting for the next cnie or trving to come back here and

turn around and go back. And T was able to get in the vicinity
there in the east, I had scme of those standby invitations. I

did four fund raisers, in tuut interim. Now, the same thing is
true in these other trips. I have aécepted an invitation to appear
in Dallas, Texas, for a citizen's group that is very effectivé on
the whole subject of crime and law enforcement, and I'm going to
talk about our own task force here and our own plans and what it is
that we found in our task force. I am going to do some fund raisers
of this same kind thaf I dia lést'week. I'm going to do them on the
way back to Califérnia. The third‘one, in March, happens to be

the Governor's Conference in Washingten, And there I'm going to
pick up a couple on the way in and I'm going to do two on the way
back, and that's the reason for the., But so far -~-~ and we have
scheduled no trips in which I am simply leaving the state to go

out and do some political chores. I think: as we get into the
campaign, like a great many other people in my position in other
states, I will be doing that when I can. I will be accepting
invitations to go out and help other candidates.

Q Governor, during your eastern trip you were hosted -- you
were hosted in the board room of what Spiro Agnew used to call the

Eastern Establishment Press. You've been critical of the press

in the past, did you have a message for them or diq?hey‘have a message

-



for you?
A Well, a mutual friend, I've known the newspaper business
and the publishing field clear back to my sports announcing days.
And it was also a mutual friend of the Publisher of the New Ygfk
Timeg said again, if I was ever in New York, would I let him know
with enough time, he'd like for me to have lunch with him just to
N get acquainted, and this is exactly what we did. And after they
screened me and fourdout I d@n't eat my young and th%forked tail
dith't show, vhy, they let me in. We had a very delightful lunch

and got better acquainted.

0] Did you have a messgge for them?

A What?

Q Pid you have a message for them?

A No, I answered some of their questions about things that

are going on in California. That was that.

0 Governor, are you going to cut back on your fund raising

in this state this year?

A No.
Q For Republican candidates,
A No. As a matter of fact, I've committed to a number of

fund raisers to the Central Committee, doing it all through the
State Central Committee,

Q Governor, both Governors McCall and Andrus have expressed
concern about the Air Force's plan to fly a Minuteman missile over
their states, and this missle will also fly over parts of Califrnia.
Do you%hare their concern?

A No, because -~ and maybe because I wanted to say something
until I -- I had a chance to have a brie fing, I've had a briefing
vhile T was in Washington from the 2air Force. And I was greatly
pleased with what I learned. First of all, I have to say I agree
with the necessity for such a firing. This is the principal defense
weapon of the United States. And it is a gun we have never fired.
And to leave the fate of tlk United States dependent on a weapon
system, and you don't know whether it will go off when you pull the
trigger seems to me rather foolhearty. I would think that the
people would be demanding and would have before this, that such a
test be fired. But what Impressed me in the briefing was the thor-
oughness of the study that's going forward, We are talking about

.



something that will take place a year from now, And the Air Force

is conducting the most thorough study throughout this year that I
have ever -- ever seen. Itwill involve element of risk as compared
t o crogssing the street, It will involve all the environmental
possibilities. And all of us who are concerned, such as the
governors here in the West Coast, are going to be completely informed

at every stage <f thhs study, you might say, before final decision

is made.
Q Why would two governors be opposed =—-
A Well; nwes I say, ~they spoke up evidently before they had

such a briefing, and I think they just envisioned that somebody

was just going to go in there and pull the trigger and that was

that. I have now learned that this is going to be ~- there is

going to be a year-long study leading up to this. Every possible
facet of environmental harm, of risk, people or property, everything
is going to be thoroughly studied, and evaluated by the Air Force, and
we are going to be kept informed. Now, if something developes in that
study in which there is reasoﬁfor controversy for concern on the

part of the western governors as, say, against the Air Force's
decision or determination to fire it, then is the time to go in on

the basis of those facts and register a protest.

Q Are you the only governor that has been given a briefing?

E I don't know whether it =- it is available to the others,

but I happened to be there. I was going to be in Washington and

this was another thing, I asked for it.

Q Governor, you've said a moment ago about something about

(PDonvTeman W0 ;W/}/«&)
crossing the street, Are you saying this,test firing is going to

be no more dangerous than crossing the street?

A No, what I'm saying is we hope it won't —= but what I'm
saying is that wken they go into the incidents of risk, they are not
only going to just come out with some statement, they don't think
there is any risk. They are going to statistically rate whatever
element of risk there is, to all the normal things in our daily
life. Driving to work, flying to Los Angeles, Crossing the street,
whatever it might be. They are going to -~ so that people can see
actually statistically what is the percentage of possible danger
compared to all the normal pursuits of our daily life,

] A candidate, == how would you assess the enthusiasm and
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support of people back in the east on your last trip for the

possibility of you running for the presidenty? I'm sure they came

up to you even if you didn't bring up the subject yourself,

A Oh, of course, like any phace, there are people that talk
to you and that say this and express a hope and so forth, but I
wasn't keeping any tally. And T wasn't doing anything except

appearing at those four fund raisers. And that was the purpose of

the trip.

0 Thay expressed a hope for what, Governor?

A What?

Q Expressed a hope for what?”‘

A Bell, what's the standard guestion here that was being

asked? About a possible future candidacy of mine.

0] Governor, more =~-

Q Governor, what did Admiral Zumwalt have to say about navy
bases in California and the{} futﬁ;e?

B Well, we know that there is a re-evaluation going on and

has to be of bases of all kirds, military bases. We, on the other

hand, had an opportunity to express our concern about some of them
and I have already received word from the Deputy Secretary of the

Navy regarding one that was of principal concern to us, over in the
Bay area. And I have received --just received a message that thee
are no plans for phasing that out. Itbgives employment to several

thousand Califdrnians.

Q What was that Bay area base?

A Over in Alameda.

Q Al ameda Naval Air.

Q Governor, the Senate says you haven't sent the names of

your Resources Board appointees, those controversial ones for

confirmation of =~ and they can't act until you send the names to

them.
A Have we -~
ED MEESE: They should have been. Should be.
A Should have beep if they haven't --
0 Oh,
A I don't understand that. We will try to find out why.
Q Governor, was anything said about the naval base of San

" v o
Francisco? Was anything said about closing of the naval base in

San Francisco?



A I can't recall that there were any specifics at that time.
Everything was under review,

Q Governor, what was your personal reaction to being the first
man overridden in twenty-eight years in fhe State?

A Exactly what T saiqﬁo you. You know, it's hbout time the
other shoe fell. I don't think it was very important or earth-
shaking, at all. And I think it was a very minor thing. It
happened to be on a bill that doesn't change anything, in reality.
It doésn’t accomplish anything, The hospitals weren't going to be
closed. My one concern I've already expressed to you, I think
that -- I thinkit is poor administration to have it this way. I
think the legislature -~ this opens up the possibilities now of log
rolling with regard to institutions that are in various legislative
districts.

Q Well, it's been suggested that as a lame duck Governor
you are going to be losing your grip on the legislature and that

we might be able to see more of these. How would you rate your

infl uence with the legislature on this last year?

A What grip has a Governor had on a legislature that outnumbers
him in both houses and has been fighting tooth and nail to stop him
from doing everything he's ever tried to dg%ince he's been here?

I'm talking through the third person, but I mean me. I don't know
if thd's a grip on a legislature, it is a pretty strange one. You
know, the welfare reforms came about only because the people of
California finally made the 1egislature realize they couldn 't

hold out ay longer after they had held out for five months, That
isn't a governor's grip on the legislature. They came to see me

and frankly said, "We can't take the heat any longer, let's sit down

and talk."
P s

Q What was said to Senator Marks, and why was he called?
A What?
0 What was said to Senator Marks and why was he called on

o e )
the,override?
A Well, any time that's going on or any time you are trying

to get a bill passed, you do what's -~ they term, "working the
legislature,” You call legislators and try to persuade them on a
course that you'd wish they'd take. But there were no threats made

to him. There were no threats made to anyone. Never done business



Q Who wlse was called besides Senator Marks on that bill at
that time?
A Well, I imagine-~I didn't make them, but I imagine calls

went to =- to everybody who seemed to be a possible aye vote.

Q Are you g8OYry, how, Governor, that you called Senator
Marks?
A I didn't call him,
Q I mean are you sorry that he was called?
A No, not really.
(Laughter)
o] Is it true that you said you'd campaign in his district
for him?
A What?
Q Did you say =-
A I've made no changsz. I campaign for everyone that is a

Republican nominece.

Q Governor, in the conversation was relayed to us -~ related to
us by Senator Marks, as coniirmed in essence by Mr. Meese, what

was said was, ®*You should support the governor in this, or it is

going to be difficult fér him to support you." The bill itself wasn't
even discussed. What was at stake here, the bill -~ the merits

of the bill or youpﬁoéggﬁﬁge?

A Everyone was aware that the bill didn't change anything.

It didn't suddenly change a plan of ours. The?egislatre had been
assured that the hospitgis were not going to be clgsed. And, as

I say,‘the -~ I felt there were two things franklg}nvolved there.

I thought one, as I said before, it was bad administration.

Secongﬁly, I think that it further adb to the confusion of a lot

of people in California who are not aware of the fact that outside

the boundaries of California this state is recognized world-wide

as having made the most progress and being farther ahead in the
treatment of the mentally ill than any place in the world. Our
national government recognizes that, We have world-wide visitors who
come here, to study what we are dbing in this system. And I think
this was just another case of further confusing the people who --

a great many in California who have some misconception that somehow

we are practicing economies at the expense: of mental health, And
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it isn't true. Our budget has gone up tremendously, We are spend~

ing eight times as much on the subsidizing of county mental health

care clinics, We have 1400 such institutidns in Los Angeles County

alone. And a thousand of them are doing a better?ob than we have
e ver been able to do in the state hospitals. Dicg you had your hand

up or did I get yours?

(0] You got me.

A Oh,

Q Governor, what 1is your position on the =-

A I tell you, I've just noticed that you fellows have a

new custom here, you have given up hands and the fellow that just
raises his hands doesn't get called on because somebody else has
s tarted talking already.
Q What is your position on the state lottery?
A My position on the state lottery? I've always been
opposed. I think in a state —- first of all, I've studied the other
states, and the other state lotteries. I have ketters from New
York, for example, where every legislator and every committee

. chairman and so forth that had anything to do with that has wrfitten
me, all individually, and in each one of them in some place in his
letter said, "If I had &t €o do over again, I would vote on it the
other way. But they are not as successful financially as people
have been led to believe. But, more than that, I think that a
state like California ought to be getting its revenues by appealing
to people'’s strengths and not their weaknesses. The other thing
that bothers me about it is I haven't seen any of the proponert s of
it suggestiwhat tax would be reduced, dollar for dollar. If it was
replaced by a lottery. In other words, it is another tax increase,
it is getting more money for gobernmert and I think government should
be getting less. |
0] That means you would not sign that bill under any cireum-

'''' stances if it came to you?

A I think they are suggesting a thing on the ballot. I

don't think U have anything to do with signing it or not.

Q What do yo@%bink of —— I raised my hand.
A Yeah. Almost as fast as you started asking. Go ahead.
Q What do you think of the Assembly Speaker's proposal to
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lower from two-thirds.to a majority the vote as +o change bank and

corporation tax and its pledge to lead an initiative on #ere if

they can't get it through the legisléture?

A Well, I'm opposed, for one reason, I agree with the idea
that they shouldn't have any consideration more than amy other tax-
payer. But I believe that we should make it two~thirds vote for any
tax increase, because I think it should be harder to increase taxes,
not easier,

Q Governor, for the past -~ for the past year the state has

been Sacramento and Stockton that its unemployment rates were around

five per cent. Now, the federal government has come in and told

us they'are really up around seven per cent, Who are we to
believe?

A Well, I'm glad you asked thaf question because that reveals
the kind of donfusion that is going to follow what I think was a
ridiculous move by the Labor Department in Washington. They have
devised a new statistical system for calling unemployment. We

t hink we have had a pretty accurate system. Now I can give you the
example, By our system we imrow that urnemplioyment in January went

up over December. By the nef statistf%al systé& they make it look
like we have seven and a half, not five and a half per cent,
unemployment, but under their figures your unempléyment goes down.
Now, we know it went up from December to January, but under their
new systemfhey're figuring it we went down in smemployment in this
month, And we know itﬁsn‘t true, But we think a great many people
are not going to understand and they are going to suddenly,
particularly in the energyy crisis, see unemployment rates suddenly
of seven and eight per cent, And they are going to think it is an
increase of that much because they won't -recognize that whee last
month our figures showed 5.3 per =~ unemployment, under the newly
adopted system, which we announced today,those figures would have
been 7.5. Now, what they have done, among other things, is go all
the way down and include 14 year olds as unemployed. The truth of
the maﬁter is the federizl system for declaring unemployed is nothing
more than a bottery itself, They make 50,000 periodically -~ 50,000
phone calls to homaseholds in the United States and ask them if they
got anybody there that wants work. = Now, if yo@got a 14 year old

kid going to school, and mama wants to say, "Yeah, I wish he did have
a job after school,” bang, he's now unemployed. And I have used
this figure before. Sweden, where, being socialist, they have an

accurate count of the unemnloved. Inow esartlvs how mantv nanhla ara Ande



of work -~ Sweden, a few years ago, used the American system as

an experiment and found that their actual unemployment of 46,000 went

up to 137,000 under the American system, And we are in disagreement
with this shift to this new method. But we are a little confused.
We don't understand it and we particularly don't understand it
because apparently Washington, for the national level, is going to

. continue to use the old figures, And this one's got us really

spinning, So, it is bureaucracy at its worst, P

s P’
Q Governor, what's your view of the propriety of Bob Moretti
v v o -
remaining as Speaker while he's out running for Governor?
A Well, that's a legislative matter. There is no question

but that he gets advantage of a position and the risk is there of

the use of state funds by way of staff and so forth, involved in

the campaign. But this, I think, is something for his primary
opponents and others to =-- to bring up and call to people's attention.
Q Well, if you were Speaker of the Assembly and you were
running for Governor, what would you do?

A That 's a hypothetical question, because I can't conceive

of ever being Speaker of the Assembly.

""" (Laughter)
A I know, I say it is a hypothetical qudstion and I don't go
for hypothetical answers.
0 Governor, do you welcome the possibiligy of Jesg; Unfﬁh ccﬁ?ng

s
back to the Assembly?

A Well, I got to tel%&ou, in the last year or so I've missed
him more than I thought I would.
Q Governor, just on the point, on clarification. On the

Py &

response to the question on would you campaign for Senator Marks,

you said that you =~- you made no changes and you'd campaigh for

every Republican or every Republican nominee.

2 Well, when you do that you can'’t actually personally

get into th:zt, Let me say, I've gone to the aid of every Republican
nominee whaenzver I could and I have no intention of changing that --
that plan. T believe “lie &*nte would be in better hands if we had

a Republican majortty.

Q Governor, last nignht your proposai~to change the

rule died in the Senate without coming to a vote,

Senator Lagomarsino's bill. Do you plan to take that up to the
legislature again this year in some form or another?

A Well, I have encouraged them. ves., to keep trvinag on that



and I certainly inte‘:'to keep trying myself, be,éuse I think there
is wide public acceptance for it. And I think this is another
example of legislative leadership that is out of tgne with the
people's thinking. I just think that if somebody}ztopped for going
through a red light and he's got a bucket of heroin on the front
eaat, there is something pretty ridiculéus about some rule that says
he can't introduce that bucket of heroin in court, all he can do is
give a ticket for going through a red light.

Q Yesterday, in a follow-up guestion, Senator Moscone said
that if that bill were passed it would -~ would be all right for
peopke to break into the Ellsbmrg psychiatrist's office.

A No, it wouldn't, and that is a complete. distortion, and
Senator Moscone must know better than that. He was =~ there is
nothing of the kind. Nothing endangers -~ what we are really
trying to do is put two letters back into the application -~ or

in the constitution, U N, unrzasonable search and seizure, And
this is what we are supposed to be protécted against. And what we
are actually doing urder thigs exclusionary rule is protecting a --

v
'
some possible criminals against reasonablie search and seizure. The

great diaper case is the classic example. A nine-month old baby,
they found the heroin in the baby's diapers, and the judge ruled that
the ninewmonth old baby had not given permission for a violatibn

of its constitutional rights.

Q Governor, your example of a policeman finding a bucket

of heroin on the front seat of a car when he stops a speeder, is

that an actual example that you are citing, or is that -- was that --
A Yes, yes, we have had -- we have had actual examples of that.
We have had several times examples of =~ of weapons in cars that
could lead to the belief that -~ there might have been involv ement

in a crime of violence, and so forth. And the exclusionary rule
has made all of that. The list of horror stories of cases that
have been thrown out -~ now all our change is based on is the
opinion that was given by Chief Justice[Berger of the United States
Supreme Court and Chief Justice Berger said that this mile had

been gbused, and what still is required is the warrant for a search,
but if in the sesaching you find something beyond what you were
looking for, but that is evidence of a crime, that this can be
introduced in evidence. At the same time what We do, and that

we don't have today, is we give‘the citizen“%hose rights might bave
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been violated ~= say, .f a policeman harged in w. hout the warrant,
we give the citizen now redress that he can sue and government must
provide the legal counsel for him to sue for damages. So that he

gets his damages. And certainly law enforcement is going to be

constrained to okey the constitution rather than constantly being
taken into court in lawsuits, and at the same time you don't hzve to
throw out evidence of a real crime.

Q Governor, how well did you like the President's State of

the Union message, and what do you think it is going to do for him

to weather the sough times ahead?

A Well, I -- frou realize now you can't talk in specifics on
the legislative proposals becguse those are contained in the longer
report which we will have to wait and see what Waéénvolved. In
the spoken address, I thought that it certainly should have cleared
the air on a number of thirngs. I thought the effect -~ it was
apparent that for a great many people there it did. And I would
hope now that on top of that that the President would continue to
make himself available now fo the press in more frequent press
conferences so that the people could have a chance to see the
questions and their answers on the various issues. I frankly
thought it was fine and T thought that his élosing -— it Waé
impossible for him to make that speech and not discuss Watergate,
and I thought he did it very forthrightly, and I hope that the --
that the issue will be resolved, as he asked., I hope that we will
make the decision, and, as he said, punish the guilty and acknowledge

the innocent.

Q Govem oY ~-
Q On another subject ==
#
Q On that same subject. Governor, how can the President

expect to have the air cleared if he, as he did in his State of the
Union address, he would volunteer no more information on any of the
questions that are being raised in connection with the scandal? Now,
how do you clear the af} by keeping the door closed?

A ~No, I understand that he said he would cooperate with the
committee of the Congress that is doing the inmestigation —-- the
Judiciary committee, that he would make available and had made
available to them all the information that was peetinent to the case,
and the only reservation he held back on was -~ and I think had to,
that he could not suddenly open up the entire presidential files for

hunting expeditions, and I don't think anyone would expect him to.



This is a trddition, He didn't start it, Tt started with Thomas
Jefferson'and has been going on for a long time.

Q Governor, what's your opinion of the President's income

maintenance or negative income tax plans he's coming up before --

A Well, I don't know the plan. I know that I was in favor
of what he siid about philosophy when he said that he did not believe

we should have a welfare plan, that it made it more advantageous

to not work than to work. And this is the very basis of our
reforms. I have to feel that Cap Weinberger, in there as secretary,
together with the other people, Jim Dwight and Bob Carlson, and these
other people he has hired with this real push forward he has made,
and some of our reforms and the changes he'd made back there --

I don't think it is a revival at all of the family assistante plan.

I know ftere was a leak £p the press that might be forthcoming,

but all of the evidence I've had is that -~ that's not true.

0 Governor, have you given the final O. K. now to the plans
for the new mansion and what do you think of the bifi passed by

7 7
the Assembly td’shf?t the location again downtown?

y: Well, I think they are foolish, I think this shoyld be

a residence. I think they have got to contemplate thatkthe person
that's going to occupy that residence, and it won't be me, as you
well know, is very likely going to have a family. And many of the
men who ar%&unning for Governor now have yonnger children. I had
the experience of living for a while in the o0ld residence here down
in the downtown section and with an eight year old who came hom%?rom
school and what did he do, and where did he go? And the same is
true with the site they have downtown here. It is like living

in an office building. And the residential site has been picked, it -
has been donated to the state for this purpose. The plans are

geing forward and I hope that we are in construction by August or
September onthis new residence. Hery beautiful plans have been
adopted and they are jdst now being submitted. The preliminary
plans, and the estimates, and from there,if approved by the committee,
they will go forward with the working plans.

9] Have yo@%pp;;ved -~ you have given your approval to it?

A Yes. I thought they were lovely. As a matter of fact,

it is a goodqthing they didn't show them to me before I made my
decision about not running.



' .
Governor, if that bill reached your desk would you veﬁg it?
What?

The bill moving the site downtown,

B 0 B 0

Well, I've always said that I wouldh 't -~ I wouldn't comment
on a veto, but let me just answer it this way, you know I don't want
to break my rule about saying I will or I will not veto.

Q You've done it before,

A Let me just say I am unalterably opposed to this idea of
down here in the office complex é&stablishing a residence that is
actually part office building and part residence, because these

have been -~ all the previous ﬁians for a residence for’the governor
have been like a white house where you live upstairs over the store.
Q Governor, this is one supplemenﬁal question, What do you

think of the idéa to construct a separate executive building for the

executive and leave the legislature in this buildihng, inst;;d of bufid—
ing a neé/legislafzve building?
A Well, I'm in favor of expanding the space that the lggisla-
building

tur%%eeds, either in this n2w wing or in/a building for staff and
some of their functions that will take care og@heir space needs, but
maintaining the o0ld wing, the old Capitol, restoring it and maintain~-
ing it as the Capitol Now, I don't know, I haviﬁound it very
convenient many times to be in the same building with the legislators.
There come times when they are up and down stairs to you, constantly,
when caucuses are held --- well come budget time I've been
in that office until four o'clock in the morning, when the legislature
wzs discussing the budget before the deadline, when they stopped the
clock. And there might be quite a contest of -~ as to who had to
get out in the rain and cross the street for meetings of that kind
if the governor was across the street somewhere.

SQUIRE: Thank you, Governor.
Q Do I understand you to say that you think 1600 Pennsylvania
Avenue is a lousy place to bring up children?
A I told the Alfalfa Club that I thought a new residence
should be built, just west of the present location, about 3,000 miles
west, in California.

SQUIRE: Thank you, Governor,

e O} Qo wor
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(This rough transcript of the Governor's press conference
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possible, no corrections are made and there is no guaranty of
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GOVERNOR REAGAN: I have anvopening statement today.
(Whereupon Governor Reagan read press release No. 116)

0 Mr. Rank, how many jobs will you think you are finding
using these four techniqueg?

MR. RANK: There will be about =~

GOVERNOR REAGAN: Better move over here, those fellows
will be unhappy.

MR, RANK: There will be an additional 35 to 40
thousand new jobs available through the Employment Development
Department offices, through the three methods described there.

The fourth general area that of the retired executive's assistance
to failing businesses, we have a potential of 20,000 people ~-
jobs saved for them. |

GOVERNOR REAGAN: Anything else on this subject?

Q Yes, Governor, who are you going ﬁo appoint as the

Directof of the Employment Development Department?

VOICE: We will have something coming up,

A We will have an announcement on that and final decision
made,
0 Today?

VOICE: Yes,
A Will it be today?  Yeah. Anyone else with any questions
on it? well, all right. I thank you might be interested to koow,
though, that California in this regard, jobs.and what we have done,
has been =~ this department has been very effective, Last year
they found jobs for approximately 275,000 people, and our community
work experiment that we have been conducting in those 35 counties,

California last year put 57,000 people directly from Welfare into



private employment. And so far in the first six months of this
year we have put 39,000 from that program alone =- I might say I'm

wrong, the 275,000 is not a year, 275,000 was in the first six months

of this year. That's right. Correction,
0 Governor, do you have any comment on the Michigan election?
A Well, disappointed, of course. Nothing mor e than that.

Sorry it turned out that way. Sorry that moribeople didn't turn
out to vote,
Q Governor, in view of the continuing Watergate scenario and
new disclosures, indictments, trials, the Michigan election as
Dick mentioned, do you think it is expedient for Reéublfians to
canpaign defeﬁding the recdrd of Ricﬁard Nixdﬁ?
A Well, I think that -- we certainly have a right to point
out thg%ccomplishments of this administration, and the changes that
have taken place under this administration. It is my understanding
that the Republican candidate did not in any way refer to that
record in’his campaign.
0 But the Democratic candidate did.
A Well, the Democratic candidate, I think, was rather
demagogic and ran on nothing except the basis that anyone who is
running on the Republican side is somehow guilty of Watergate. And
I think that is pure demégoguery and it is an awful lot of hypocrisy.
0 Would you say then of the Republicans, if they are not at
least defending the President's record that they ~-~ in other words
if they are not attacking the President's record that they should
disassocif @l themselves and run on their own?
A Well, that's up to every candidate to make his decision on
how he thinks he ¢ ould run and what -- what he's going to do. I've
never found it necessary to run away from the fact that there is

e - p - T
a relaxing of tensions in the word; that there have been som of
the boldest and most imaginative and innovative steps taken in the

: . . . | [ Hrxem)
field of international affairs under this administration, that

we have known in the last four decades. I think the fact that
this country could bring ceasefire in the Middle East, and I thikk
we have to be given credit for that -- I think the fact that for
the first time that either side has ever retreated one inch from
the territory, that it has taken place under the -- under this --
the auspices of this =- of this country. We have secured that,
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Thé talks go forwa; 3now, leading hopefully to ; permanent peace.
And this is just one thing along. And I don't think that we should
shut our eyes to these things. I think we have accomplished a
great deal.

Q Governor, you were quoted earlier in the week as saying

that the outcome of the Michigan election was due more to voter

apathy than to anti-ﬁepublican sentiment,

A No, I never wed the word "apathy". It is far more -~ I
think, dangerous than that. I criticize the fact that there was
such a low turggut. And I said that if this is going to be the
effect of Watergate, that many people instead of taking one side

or the other simply are going to stand back and say, "Ce won't
participate at all," then we are going to be in a bad way. We are
going to have government by a minority of the people, a small
minority of the people, instead of government by the people.

Q Governor, this = i3 this officially rescinding your

statement that you weren't going to comment on out-of-state issues?

.Y What 's that?

0 | From now on we can talk about international and national
issues? You had a statemeni a few months ago that you weren't
going to talk about anything except state issues. Are you rescind-
ing that?

A This is because you fellows came in talking like Johnny

one-note, you wouldn't taik about anything about California.

Q You wouldn't talk about anything but California?

A That 's right.

Q Now you are widling --

-\ I answered these questions and I don't think this is

getting into the same tone of guestioning that you fellows were
using back there for a while, back where you wanted me to set
myself up as an authority on the case,

P
Q Governor, the Lieutenant Governor's current problems

if the If% cgge, do you see that in any way as a reflection béck

on you because you appointed him?

A No, and I don't see it as a reflection on him, Here
again, it ~- there seems to be a difference of opinion alhmt when
some meetings took place, or when some phone calls were made. And
I've seen no evidence of wrong-doing on his part. But, no, I
appointed a man who has done a good job as Lieutenant Governor.

Been a fime Lieutenant Governor, a great many people have agreed



Q Has he talked with you specifically about the caseAand
what 's going on in Washington? Has he told you that he's

innocent of any wrongdoing personally?

A Well, I have understood from the beginning the whole thing
that --came out from his testimony ih Washington, and came back here

and checked his own schedule and records and found out that he

himself had made a mistake as to the trips when he was in Washington.

And -~

0 Has he personally assured you of that?

A Yes. Yeah.

o Governor, how do yogﬁustify to the citizens of this

state your taking a week off every wmonth or so to -~ to go

and campaign and make political speeches out of state when you are
on a full—fime salary from the state?

A Well, I don't take a wesk off to go and campaign and do

I haven't

full-time campaigning chores whea I'm out of the state.

changed anything, really, that --
And as I have often expiained, it
your party and you are wifhin the
office, and it is recognized, the
states come here and aid &n party
in turn go there. But these lwe
and it's been a slight distortion
paint them as that.

was a legitimate errand.

being in Washington, a few days apart.

than what I have ever done,

is true that you are the head bf
state as well holding this public
fact that other people from other
chores for both parties, just as I

not been junkets of that kind,

on the part of some of you to

They have been tied every time to what I felt

Now I had two legitimate reasons for

In those few days, which

were not enough to permit coming back tq%h%%oast, T did perform

those party chores in between, concluded the business in Washington

-and came home.

The last trip was with regard to an invitation

to Dallas, Texas, and something that I think I made a contribution

wasg to their crime commission.

It was with regard to our own

findings here and our crime report, and I took a coupde of days

on the way back and did some party chores on the way back. A

number of these trips you ¥ill find take place also involve week-

ends,

which I think I am entitled to.

The third trip which you

are talking about is coming up, the bulk of that trip is in Washin-

ton, D. C, to a National Governor'

s Conference, Now, I would be

going to that, and I would be going to that in connection with

my job as Governor,

de

And I am going to do a fu

und 2

-aiser on the way



in and I'm going to do a fund raiser on the way back.

Q Don't == doing these fund raisers actually make it for

a longer trip, you would be back sooner if you didnft have to stop?
A Anq%ometimes they all add week-end:days, #&leo.

Q ~ What -~ just one other thing, do you expect this wilil
continue for the rest of the year, with this rate? Would you
expect to do what you are doing now?

A Oh, no. No, no, because as we get into our -- our own
campaign, I'm going to be doing what I'11 try to do to help the party
in the state.

Q You were critical of the use by Speaker Moretti of state
paid employees for political purposes on Proposition 1 campaign.
Apparently there are some staff members in your office, security
and other members who are doing advance work ard accompanying you

on these political junkets, fund raising efforts for the Republican

party. How is that dffferent from Speaker Moretti's use of his
employees and secondly, how much has t his amounted to?

A Well, first of aii, secu%ity is: an around-the~clock and
around-the calendar. That's a part of the\job. And I have no con-
trol of that and wherever I am and whether it is on vacation or on

a week-end or anything else, that goes on, And I think that is
customary and anyone else in this position would have the same
situation. Now, as to taking aides along o;ythese trips, again

I can't -~ I can't separate myself and say, "I'm not Governor,"

and I take a minimum along and the only -- and they are there to
help me keep liaison, such as while I'm at the Governor's Conference,
with the state, with the things that are going on here. And I
think that's in keeping with the job because I'm still Governor,

no matter where I am.

Q Yes, Governor, but some of these men, the security, why
shouldn't their salaries be paid by the Republican party when

their efforts are devoted to protecting you in a fund-raiser?

A Will you explain the details on this?

ED MEESE: all the expenses related tofhose trips are

0 How about the salaries?
ED MEESE: Salaries are not because they'd be working

wherever they were.



0 They wourdn't be working on the same thing, would they?
ED MEESE: Yes, protecting the Governor.
A Oh, vyes, same people would be assigned, no change in
that. ¥hat's what I mean, around the clock, and around the calendar.
This particular position is =~ has that kind of security.
Q Paid by whom?
ED MEESE : The expegses are paid by whatever the event

is that the Governor -~ political event the Governor is involved

in.

A May I just add one thing. And there is no conp arison
between the ~-- what we think was an evasion of the campaign account-
ing laws of Proposition 1, and the use of full-time staff while

they were here supposedly performing their legislative duties,

There iseﬁggcomparison. And we have been scrupulously overzealous,
ifi anything, in dnsuring that there is nothing that is dumped on

the taxpayers in this state.

0 Governor, new subiject. Governor, what importance do you

attach to the outcome of the special election coming up in the

13th State Senatorial District?

A Well =-
Q Excuse me, Congressional District.
A Congressional District. Well, the importance I attach

to it is that we hope we can win it, We reoognize that it is
like every ~- practically every other district in the state, it
is =-=- we are outnumbered, We are the minority party and we hope
that we an retain that seat.

o] If the party loses -~ excuse me, Governor, if the party
loses that seat, how would you interpret that?

A Well, let's talk about that when we see what happens,

0 Governor, the Attorney General's office issued an opinion

yesterday say&nggthat the campaign antribution laws of San Diego,
o/ |

&
te Vista, and the County of San Diego, are all

San Francisco,
unenforcable because the State has preempted the field and that
therefore the cities cannot say that there is a max{mum amgﬁnt

of moggy that you can contribute to a»lodgl campaign. Do you
have any reaction tq%hat in light of your frequent statements that
there should be 1océ{ control?

A Well, you just -- this is thg&irst time that I've heard
about it and I'm not going to comment on a legal opinion, not being

a lawyer myself until I find out what it is based on, what the law



is. It is true there are many areas that the state has preempted
for local government, Some of those I may agree with and some I
may disagree with,

Q Governor, would you comment on the latest event in the

Hearst kidnapping, this demand for $4 million dollars?

: No, this is -~ this is a subject again where I repeat

what I've said before, this is too sensitive to -~ for me to make

any comwe nt on this., There is only one concern that I think all of

us hawe, we Want that young lady returned Safety. There is a young

fellow way in the back row there.

0 Governoré you've been asked by the makers of a movie in

Oroville,~ca11e63;1an§man, to appear in that movie. Do you have

any comment and do you plan on appearing in it? |

A First of all, I have read in the papers and heard on the

air that I have been asked to appear in that movie, No one's asked

me and I think that all of youa have cooperated in giving a very

bright young public relations man the attention that he wanted for

the pictre. And, no, I hsven't been zsked and no, I'm not going
Cmarhen )

to play in that or any othexr picture.

Q Governor, you met with Assemblyman Charles Warren yesterday

on the energy crisis bill. What did you agree on?

A Well, we are continuing to talk, we have been talking
for sometime. The only thing we are agreed on is we all want

to == a bill that we can all be happy with and that will do the
job, and there are certain points of difference between us and the
negotiations are con -- the conferences are going to go forward

on trying to minimize those and arrive at something that I will

support.

Q Do you take a personal part in the negotiation?

A No.

0 What are your main areas of disagreement right now?

A I'd rather not talk while we are still in the di;i;ssion

on this, I don't want to do anything that will prejudice it or

make it difficult for those who are going to be trying to iron out the
differences, but I don't think they ar%?oo tremendous.

Q On a related subject, the gasoline situation, particularly
in southern California, it is pretty grim, and you do have a cS:-
tingegéy ratioﬁ?ng plaﬁybefore you, Do you%ave any immediate

plans to try to implement some sort of a system to relieve the

pressure of -- in southern California?



A Well, w 1ave that contingency plan ‘as you know, and
we are monitoring daily as to whether it is going to be required
or not. We know that the County Board of Supervisors in Los
Angeles County has discussed doing something of their own on a
local basis. And this might =~ this might be called for more than
a statewide plan because a statewide plan affects the whole state and
there are many areas in the state where there's no problem. The

....... thing again, and I -- I wish tbat you could all help in this.
This panic buying, there is absolutely no reason for it. Aniﬁt
has been caused and created by nothing but gossip and rumor and
the thought that maybe there is going to be some kind of nationing.
Now, ratioﬁing has never been considered by us. Rationing is
not a part of the plan. The continéincy plil even, But the
talk of that literally started the panic buying. The situation is,
as I explained it the other day, Californians have 80 per cent for

their use, for their personal use, of all the gas they ever had

before there was an energy shortage. It just seems that with a

little care, a little attention to th%%peed limit and the elimination
of some useless trips and doubling up here and there that it isn't
too difficult to eliminate one out of the five miles of travel, and
that's all they have to do. And the <~ this thing of lining up

and waiting for hours to top off a gas tank with a gallon and a half
of gasoline is just sheer panic and it is ridiculous.

Q It is a big area, and there are many drivers there,
probably more than the reét of the state. Why are you so hesitant
to use that plan?

A Well, as I say, we are -- we are monitoring this plan and
we will put it into effect if we believe that this plan can be of
help, resolve the issue, There was a big panic over the long week-
end. Now we are monitoring to seeyhether this is == being
alleviated as people are finding out that they can get gas. And,
as I say, if the people understand the facts, if they understand

i, that there is no threat to this andit is not going to be reduced,
and it is there and it is 80 per cent, approximately, available,

to them of everything they ever had, it is a little bit like the
thermostats and turning down the lights. Just éﬁittle affort can
actually reduce the amount of gas that people are using.

Q You say there is no need for that plan now?

A Well, as I say, we are monitoring to make sure and find

out, After all, that plan has not been a raging success in a number
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0 Governor, jhé panic is brought on to aklarge extent by
the fact that there are not many service stations open. Over the
week-end a very small percentage. Thére may be 80 per cent gas
available, but maybe 85 per cent of the stations are shut down,

A No, but the panic buying is draining gas stations of their
allocation and they rush in and finally the station has to close.
We think that -- if people ~- they didn't have to have it last
month, there was no panic buyingkand everyone seemed to be getting
all the ggé they needed, and occasionally stations closed, there
was no real hardship, and we had the same amount of gas we had then.
Believe me. when I tell you that this whole rush and panic buying
started with the first neWspaper Egleases that we were considering
and would have akailable a contiﬁgency pf;n if it became necessary,
and suddenly thig was interpreted by the people as rationing and
that they weren't going to be able to get the gas. The same

thing as the erroneous stories that the states that got extra
allocation were going to take it away from the states that already
had it. ®nd this is not true. This was not tazken from any other

state.

0 Governor, yesterday I understand you called Senator Jack
schrade into your office and told him you were going?o vegi

the first bifi that you ever vetoed of his during your admingstra-

tion because of a fight between subcontractors and contractors,

as I understand it. Can you tdl -~ g¢an you relate that conversa ~
tion and why you are vetoing the Schrade bill? The press release
is onits way.

A The veto message is on its way. The whole thing evolved
not around the bill itself, which was a very good bill and one
which would -~ could have been signed very easily, but about a
last-minute amendment that was put onto the bill without having

any consideration'by committees, and it just didn't belong &n that

bill.
0o What was that amendment?
A It was an amendment --
ED MEESE: Related to subcontrators listing --
A -- about listing the subcontracbors on =~ on public
contracts,
Q Governor, to go back to the gas situation, just briefly, do

-9~
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you think gas stal mn owners are justified in areatening to

close down if they don't get increased costs for --
A I think this is an offshoot of the same thing. If you
are asking about the price situation, I made my position clear many

times., I wish that they would leave this to the marketplace.

I wish that we would end wage an@érice controls, I think that there

would be an upsurge of prices on a number of things, very temporary,
}}}}}}}}} an%%hen I think the marketplace would take care og%hat. And it

would seek and find its own level on a lower level.

Q Do you think it is proper for them to threaten to close down

if they don't get theif prices?

A Well, I wish they wouldn't, I don't think we have

accomplished anything with those kind of -~- oﬁ?etions. I think this

is a time for -- some patience and some common sense and for people

to have a little good will and try and resolve their problems,

0 Governor, back to my gu=sstion, a second, Are you taking

sides here with the electrical subcontractors over the general

P /
antractors on the Schrade biil?

A No, I'm just doing what I think I have to do about an
amendment that should have gone through the committee process and
been ddequately considered, and it was a last-minute thing that
changed the tenure of a bill.

Q Governor, what is the policy of your administration
regarding proposals such as that made last week by Alan Post to

j [3 w » *
merge all the environment relates boards, air, water,solid waste,

into one super board? Do you go for something like that or do

you think they should be -~ should shay as individual entities?

A Well, I can't say that we have had any great study or

research on that proposal as vyet. It is something to be looked at

and something to be studied.

0 Just parenthetically, it also moved to upgrade individuals

of the Air Resources Board into a full-time, full-paid term appoint-
o, ment board. As the water board.

A Well, I haven't -~ I don't think we have had any discussion

on thaf as yet.

Q Governor, we have what appears on first reports another

political kidnapping in Atlanta. Are you concerned at all we

might be seeing a new type of technique that governments are going
to have to deal with?

-10-



A Well, I think this is a concern you always have with any
crime that gets a great deal of attention. We have known that --
thét it just seems to be the nature of crime that -=- imitators
spring up and that -- ﬁhose crimes are imitated. Particularly
when one receives the attention that this one is naturally receiving.
But this has been true as long as there has been crime. It gives

"""" somebody else an idea; of course, it is a matter of concern.

Q But this technique has been used quite extensively in other

countries, for politigél purggses.

A Yeah.,

0 Is the state doing anything? Are you at all concerned

that thus might become something that we Will see much more of?

) Well, all I can say is we are continuing to stay in touch

with our own problem here, in touch with the law enforcement offices

who have the jurisdictipn over this., But --

Q How close is the contact between your office and the FBI

on the Hearst case?

A Well, we have a liaison with svery level of luw enforce-

ment. Can't go beyond thet.

Q Governor, have 'vyou talked with Mr. Hear yourself just

to offer him your assurances?

A Yes.

Q When was that?

2 Thiw was =~ my goodness, it's probably been a week or so
ago.

Q You talked to him rust the one time?

A Yes.

0 What was discussed, Governor, can you relate that?

A Just have him my -- told him my regrets and my sympathy

and that -- a great many of us were praying that shewuld be safely
returned,

o] Governor, I'm still trying to get a full answer to this —--
this gquestion. This last-minute amendment that you dich't like,
would you say that -- are you saying that Senator Schééde or the

contractors -- someone did something that was wrong or untoward and —-

A No, I'm just saying that an amendment made thebill
unacceptable and it was adopted without the legislative process,
ang -~

SQUIRE: Any more questions?
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Q. Yes. T vk on the Lieutenant Gover 'r. If there is an
indictment, do you think he should resign? Resulting from the ITT
affair,

A Well, again, those are things—I'm not going to comment on
hypothetical things of that kind.

Q Governor, there is a Revenue and Taxation Senate-passed
bill éxtenﬁing the impo%ﬁtion of the oné cent incfzase in the sales

ST >, =

-
tax for another six months, Is there any chance there will be

enough money in the budget, you know, you are going to look that over,
whether that could take place?

A "No. It does make me realize that I advised ard suggested
to the legislature when they did this the first time, they should
have made it a half a cent for a year instead of a penny for six
months and they absolutely would not listen to it. But I've seen

no suggestion as to where the money is going to come from, another

$320 million dollars.

Q You don‘t-think -=- they talked about an incréi;e in*the
oif/reveﬂi;s offséi;ing that. Do you see any hope there?
A No. |
- Q Tidelands oil.
A No, all -- I think that -- I think the wieast thing for

the State to consider the o0il revenues that the state gets, I think
has -- they have to accdpt those as capital. Thét those are not
like a tax that's an ongoing source of revenue, and that the state
ought to be very careful to see that those are spent not for ongoing
programs, but sre spent for basically capital expanditures.

SQUIRE: Thank you, Governor,

~=m000=—~
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